HUDSON, NH BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Minutes of the September 15, 2020 Meeting

- 1. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u> by Chairman Morin the meeting of September15, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. in the Selectmen's Meeting Room at Town Hall.
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Reverend Howe

3. ATTENDANCE

Board of Selectmen: David Morin, Kara Roy, Normand Martin, Roger Coutu

Absent: Selectman McGrath

<u>Staff/Others</u>: Rob Buxton - Fire Chief; Bill Avery - Police Chief; Jess Forrence - DPW Director; Elvis Dhima - Town Engineer; Kathy Carpentier - Finance Director; Jill Laffin - Executive

Assistant

RECOGNITION

Chairman Morin stated that he was going to go out of order from the agenda and recognize Officer Jason Downey first. Master Patrol Officer, Jason Downey of the Hudson Police Department was recognized for his 20 years of service with the Town. Chairman Morin read the following: "Master Patrol Officer Downey began his Law Enforcement career with the Hudson Police Department August 20, 2000. Upon graduation from the New Hampshire 124th Police Academy, MPO Downey was assigned to the Patrol Division Unit until January 2004 when he transferred to Support Services. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Criminal Justice from the University of Massachusetts.

MPO Downey is currently our Comfort Dog Handler to our beloved dog, Haven. He is an SRO officer in the Memorial School and has great rapport with the children. He is also a member of the critical incident management team.

MPO Downey is actively involved with volunteering at department blood drives in conjunction with the American Red Cross; the C.H.I.P.S. Fright Night event; the DARE program; New Hampshire Special Olympics; Lacrosse Coach for Alvirne High School; Director of the Youth Police Academy; the Senior Citizen's Police Academy and Neighborhood Crime Watch Program at Westchester Place; and with the Citizen's Police Academy. MPO Downey also has volunteered as an Advisor to members of the Hudson Police Explorer Post #320.

MPO Downey is dedicated to his job and has certainly been an asset to the Hudson Police Department." Chairman Morin thanked MPO Downey and presented him with a certificate.

5. PUBLIC INPUT

Chairman Morin said, we're going to now go back to the regular order of business. Public Input. A couple of weeks ago, the Town had contacted the Governor's office in reference to getting support from the DOT reference to the project at Green Meadows. At that time we were just looking for some input from DOT to assist us with the, as everyone knows in Town, the major traffic problem, and they were very slow to react. Due to that contact with the Governor's office we got a virtual meeting that included the Town Engineer, the Town Planner, and the Chairman of the Planning Board, Mr. Malizia, Selectman Coutu and myself. We thought we had a very good meeting. That's all we expected and we moved on to work with DOT. A week later we received an invitation from the Governor to meet in his office. Really had no reason why, other than we were going to discuss the traffic situation in Hudson.

This meeting was scheduled four times and due to other circumstances it was canceled three. On the meeting last Monday, Tuesday, I'm sorry, Mr. Malizia and myself traveled to Concord under the understanding that we were going to discuss the Sagamore Bridge and the possibility of an exit off of the bridge and an entrance ramp back onto the Sagamore related to the project. We stated our case briefly and were immediately told that it was not going to happen. Then the Governor brought forth the Circumvential Highway and he was told on at least two occasions that we understand that that would be a long process, that there were funds and that Hudson had failed twice to get a grant and that we were not prepared to talk about the highway and that did not realize that's why we were coming up to his office. He proceeded to continue to talk about the highway and actually made an offer to the Town. His offer to us was that if the development at the Green Meadow Golf Course was approved within 45 days, he would start the engineering for the highway the next day and move forward with the funding mechanism through the State which has to go through legislature, which is a long process due to budgeting.

He was given no guarantees that we were going to do any of this and he was told that we, at this point, couldn't discuss it because that's not why we went up for the meeting. We did not have the Board or anything like that. Then we received it in writing, which everyone has seen the letter over the last week which has caused a lot of concern and a lot of comment. I can tell you that there are groups in this Town that have blown this out of proportion and made a lot of misinformation. I've received numerous emails from people that either misunderstood what they letter said or didn't read it completely and we have a vast amount of public input tonight related to this letter.

People need to understand that the Town process is that this is not a Board of Selectmen issue. This is a Planning, Town Planning, issue. The Board of Selectmen will be taking these letters. We will be forwarding them to the Planning Committee. We will not be taking any action. At some point, have no idea when at this time, if it gets to this level, the Board of Selectmen will only make a decision on water and sewer. This again, is not a Board of Selectmen problem. This is a Planning Board. We understand that there is a lot of concern out there with the residents but we have full confidence in our Town Planner and our Planning Board to make sure that this process is completed in the correct manner, in a timely manner and in the right way. So again, we appreciate the letters, we appreciate the input, but at this time the Board will not be taking any action on any of letters. Is there anyone that would like to comment before we move on?

Selectman Roy was recognized and said, so I did actually write a statement about it that I'm just gonna go through. I read with dismay, the Governor's letter to the Chairman. Now less than 50 days before the gubernatorial election the Governor has presented us with the ultimate quid pro quo. The offer is to exchange the planning and engineering of the Circumvential Highway in exchange for the Planning Board approving the Hillwood-Amazon development project. The Circumvential Highway is a project that has not gained traction in over 50 years. The community has not displayed the will to actively pursue the project. Concerns about this project include the damage to the environment and cost to the tax payers. Additionally, as six of our seven State Representatives pointed out, the Circumvential Highway addresses neither the impact of increased traffic caused by the Hillwood-Amazon project, nor the quality of life matters raised by our citizens. The Planning Board is appointed to, among other thing, review, approve or disapprove subdivision and site plans. There is a clear process in place to assist the Planning Board in approving these plans. The applicant completes the application and submits it along with the plans and supporting documents, to the Planning Board. The Town staff reviews the plan and it is sent for legal review. Public notice is sent to the abutters and a date is set for public hearing. At the public hearing the Board accepts or rejects the application, the applicant presents their proposal and there is public input. For a project this size it is not unreasonable to have several meetings that include public input and discuss specific aspects of the plan. For example, there may be a meeting just about traffic and another meeting to discuss the environmental impact. To suggest that we forgo this process and not allow the Planning Board to conduct the due diligence their position requires is reprehensible. The Planning Board has a statutory obligation to their community to weigh the benefits and drawbacks of a project and make a decision on that analysis. The Planning Board should have an opportunity to meet that statutory obligation without the undue influence of the Governor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Morin recognized Selectman Coutu who said, I'm going to be very careful with my choice of words Mr. Chairman, as you know I am the Selectman Representative on the Planning Board. I appreciate the fact that the Governor recognizes that there's a traffic problem in Hudson and as I read through his letter I think it goes beyond the Hillwood project in terms of trying to assist us with the traffic problem. Something we've been trying to do for the 13 years that I've been on this Board. However, I want to make it very clear, two things. 1) The Governor's letter does not indicate the 45 days. That was a comment he made to you, with the presence of our Town Administrator that he would like to have it done in 45 days. That has been excluded from the letter and it would appear that there is no timetable. I want to make one thing very clear. In no way, nor at any time, will I consider the Governor's offer to resolve the issue with our traffic by easing congestion on Lowell Road as it exists today, without giving due diligence to Hillwood Developers to present their plan and again, I'll reiterate something that I've said in the past, I continue to read each and every single email, each and every single letter that his sent to this Board, every email that is sent to us individually and I take them all into consideration and they will all be absorbed and taken into consideration. And again, I repeat, under no circumstance will I make a decision on the proposed Hillwood project at Green Meadow because of a letter sent to us by the Governor. I think they're two separate and distinct issues. Obviously the easiest way for Hillwood or when it becomes a viable discussion would be if DOT allows us to have an exit ramp off of the bridge, directly onto the property and they've pretty much stated clearly that that's not going to be the case. So we'll judge it on the merits of the plan, if we ever get one, in its entirety and in its completion. Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Morin then asked, anyone else for comments? Ms. Laffin said, Mr. Chairman, I have a statement from Selectman McGrath regarding this. I was holding it until new business. Chairman Morin scanned over the statement and said we received a letter from Selectman McGrath. Again, there's several questions related here about construction costs, who's responsible for maintenance. At this point, I'm not going to move further with this letter either because we're not gonna deal with this and this plan is not moving forward at this point. But it will be placed on file for future reference if we do have discussions on the highway in the future. The letter from Selectman McGrath was received.

The statement from Selectman McGrath stated:

September 15, 2020

From: Selectman McGrath

Re: Gov. Sununu letter dated September 9, 2020

Although I cannot be present this evening, I want to offer my comments concerning the Governors letter and offering of assistance to the Town.

In my opinion the offer should be rejected in its entirety. The offer fails to specify the following:

- Who is responsible for construction cost?
- Once constructed, who will be responsible for the maintenance?
- Will this be a toll road? If so, who will be the beneficiary of the tolls?
- Will the State construct additional lanes along Lowell Road and Dracut Road to alleviate the traffic in the southern end of Town at no cost to Hudson residents?

These are my preliminary comments on the Governor's letter. I will say this; as a lifelong Hudson resident and of the State I'm disgusted that the State government continues to use Hudson as a dumping ground. I'll have more to say as I continue on my path to recovery."

Additionally three (3) emails were received for this public input. They are listed here.

1.

Mr. David Morin (via mail to Town website) Chairman of the Board of Selectmen 12 School Street Hudson, NH 03051

RE: Governor Sununu's letter dated September 9, 2020 to Hudson Board of Selectmen Dear Mr. Morin

The Governor's letter stated concerning the Hudson Logistics Center project that; "It has adequately met both transportation and environmental requirements of the State for

successful development,"

How can this be correct? Currently the following environmental and transportation issues are unresolved:

- NHDES Wetlands Permit file #2020-00956 review is not complete as of September 14, 2020. Per my phone call to them today the Wetlands Bureau has only received a "cover letter and approximately 40 pounds of plans" last week in response to the bureau's Request For More Information (RFMI) letter dated June 9, 2020. The Wetlands Bureau has not had a chance to review any revised plans and RFMI requested documentation as of September 14, 2020. The Wetlands Bureau has approximately 30 days to complete the second review. So how can the Governor state environmental requirements are adequately met?
- NHDES Alteration of Terrain Permit (AoT) file #20200630-092 review is not complete as of September 14, 2020. A RFMI letter was send on August 5, 2020 to the Applicant for the Hudson Logistics Center project. The Applicant has until December 3, 2020 to respond. As of September 14, 2020 the NHDES Alteration of Terrain Permit has not been approved. So how can the Governor state environmental requirements are adequately met?
- Traffic: The Hudson Logistics Center Traffic Report dated September has just been issued. No peer review reports have been written. The first Planning Board meeting regarding the traffic issue is scheduled for October 21, 2020. So how can the Governor state traffic requirements are adequately met?

I wish I had time to research other issues with the Governor's September 9, 2020 letter but I needed to meet the 5:00 PM Board of Selectmen cutoff period for public input to the September 15, 2020 meeting. Please make sure the Board of Selectmen has all the factual pertinent information available concerning the Hudson Logistics Center project before rendering any decisions concerning it.

Respectfully Submitted James Crowley 4 Fairway Drive

2. September 14, 2020

To: Hudson Town Administrator Steve Malizia

Hudson Town Planner Brian Groth

Hudson Planning Board Chair Tim Malley

Hudson Board of Selectmen: Roger Coutu, Normand Martin, Marilyn McGrath, David Morin, Kara Roy

Commissioner of NH Department of Transportation Victoria Sheehan

Senior Transportation Planner of Nashua Regional Planning Commission Matt Waitkins As a long-time resident of Hudson, I am writing for the third time to express my strong opposition to the proposed Hudson Logistics Center at Green Meadow Golf Course. The first time I wrote, in June of this year, I was writing my observations as a resident of Lowell Road.

In August, I wrote because I found a document titled NH DOT Statewide Freight Plan, Final Report 2019. I read it thoroughly and shared my observations with all of you. I also attended the NRPC virtual meeting on Wednesday, September 9 (a mere five days ago!). Brian Groth was on the call to represent Hudson. The NRPC acknowledged that there are areas in Hudson which are already on the list of what is considered 'High Priority' for the entire State of New Hampshire. The Nashua Regional Planning Commission did not have their traffic study complete and they stated it would probably be three weeks before their results were conclusive. An estimated date was given as the first week in October.

So it was with extreme surprise and frustration the next day that I read Governor Sununu's letter dated September 10 to the town. He incorrectly stated that the Hillwood project had already secured the necessary approvals to go forward. There is no evidence at all "the State has demonstrated that the Hudson Logistics Center proponent can mitigate for their impacts in the vicinity of the project." The Governor, I believe must have just read the massive Langan traffic impact report; and concluded that it was both factual and that it met the NHDOT's requirements.

The Langan report on pages 3 and 4 incorrectly states that Walmart Boulevard (East and West) is a two-lane private driveway" with no posted speed limit. The very next point is that "Rena Avenue is a two lane east west local road under local jurisdiction." When these statements are shown grouped together, it is very misleading. Walmart Boulevard is at least 5 lines wide (three lanes exit Sam's and Walmart, and two lanes enter each property). Knowing that this is a misleading statement, I suspect that there is a lot more other misleading information! The Governor doesn't know this town and he is way out of line to try to bully the Hudson Selectmen into approval this monstrous Hillwood proposal. The Selectmen thus far have done a fantastic job with studying all aspects and trying to remain impartial. I urge you to continue to weigh the facts, at least until the NHDOT concludes its traffic findings. A Governor who is seeking re-election in a year when he knows his political party is flailing is trying to bribe Hudson with only the promise "of the preliminary design and engineering phase" of Hudson Boulevard. He uses the language that "the timeline to in which project funding is available is limited" because of economic conditions. It is not true. The State DOT has millions of excess funds which I learned from attending the NRPC meeting. If time is short, it is only because the Gubernatorial Election is in 7 weeks. Creating low-paying jobs with little advancement opportunity, is not worth destroying the whole southern NH region, and most importantly, Hudson. Our infrastructure cannot handle the impact! Every day does not have to become a traffic nightmare as residents go to work and go about their normal activities.

As a Hudson resident, taxpayer, and voter I again state that my family is against the Hillwood HLC proposal. I continue to write because I passionately care about my town, my neighbors and my quality of life. Please VOTE NO.

Sincerely,

Steven and Jennifer Varney 285 Lowell Road, Hudson

3. Via Email Only
Town of Hudson Selectboard
12 School Street
Hudson, NH 03051
bos@hudsonnh.gov

Re: Corrections to Governor Sununu Letter About Hillwood Amazon Proposal Dear Chairman Morin and Members of the Hudson Selectboard,

I write on behalf of more than fifty Hudson households that I represent in connection to concerns with the proposal of Hillwood Enterprises, L.P. to convert the Green Meadows Golf Course into a logistics and distribution center for Amazon (and another, unknown, tenant). Today I received and reviewed a copy of Governor Sununu's letter to you dated September 9, 2020, which I understand you will be taking up as new business at your meeting this evening. I wanted to briefly correct two significant mistakes in his letter. In summary, the letter suggests that the State Departments of Environmental Services and Transportation have approved the proposal, but those departments are only at the beginning stages of evaluating the proposals. First, the letter states that "the State has demonstrated that the Hudson Logistics Center proponent can mitigate for their impacts in the vicinity of the project ..." This and other statements in the letter imply that the State Department of Transportation (NHDOT) has approved the proposal. However, it has not. As demonstrated by the attached Intra-Department Communication between NHDOT District 5 and the Bureau of Traffic, dated September 1, 2020, communications continue internally at NHDOT about agreeing on the methodology and adequacy of projected traffic volumes to be used for design purposes. The communication specifically says (with underlining in the communication), "does not imply approval of the proposal."

Second, the letter says that the proposed project has adequately met environment Improvement requirements of the state. Again, that is not the case. The State Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) has not rendered any final decision on Hillwood's applications for Alteration of Terrain or Dredge and Fill (Wetlands). In fact, to the contrary, for both applications, NHDES requested more information. See attached status page from NHDES OneStop database documenting the pending request. With respect to the Wetlands application, Hillwood itself put a delay on responding to NHDES's request. See attached extension request dated August 6, 2020 asking to move the deadline for Hillwood's response to September 8, 2020.

Offices in Concord and Keene, New Hampshire and Portland, Maine

3 Maple Street, Concord, NH 03301 • nhlandlaw.com

In conclusion, please reserve judgement and defer any action with respect to Hillwood's proposal or the Governor's letter in light of the fact that permitting is still pending, both with the Hudson Planning Board and various state departments.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Very truly yours, Amy Manzelli, Esq. *Licensed in New Hampshire* (603) 225-2585 manzelli@nhlandlaw.com

Seeing no further comments, Chairman Morin moved on.

6. RESIGNATIONS & NOMINATIONS

Resignations

- Resignation of Dalton Perry as a member to the Municipal Utility Committee
 Selectman Coutu made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to accept the resignation of Dalton
 Perry from the Municipal Utility Committee.
- 2) Resignation of Paula Hubert as a member to the Benson Park Committee Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to accept the resignation of Paula Hubert from the Benson Park Committee.

Nomination/Interview

1) <u>Municipal Utility Committee</u> - (with Dalton Perry's resignation there is now 1 full member vacancy which expires 4/30/21 & 1 alternate member vacancy which expires 4/30/22) Brian Prindiville (new applicant)

Mr. Prindiville came forward and was asked by the Chairman to state his name and address for the record and to tell us a little about himself. Mr. Prindiville said, Good evening, my name is Brian Prindiville. I'm here applying for the position of full time position for volunteer on the utilities committee. Chairman Morin asked if there were any questions for Brian. Selectman Coutu asked, could he tell us a little bit about himself? Mr. Prindiville then said, so I've lived in Hudson for about five years. I think this is just a good way to get more involved with the Town activities and also my professional experience, I think, will help out with the position on the utilities committee. I'm a chemical engineer. I graduated from University of Massachusetts, Lowell. I've worked on large scale utilities services commissioning of power plants, closed cooling water systems, I've also worked with waste water treatment plants and equipment. It just seems like a good spot for me to fill. Selectman Coutu asked, are you a utility user presently? Mr. Prindiville replied, yes. Water and sewer. Selectman Coutu then asked have we met the quota on the division of utility users versus. We are in compliance? Good. Thank you Brian, I appreciate it. Chairman Morin asked if there were any further questions. Seeing none, he said, we'll take a vote next week and you will be notified. Thank you for coming tonight. I appreciate it very much.

Chairman Morin went on to Consent Items and asked, does any Board member wish to remove any item for separate consideration on consent items? Seeing none. <u>Selectman Coutu made a motion, seconded by Selectman Martin to approve consent items A, B, C, D, E & F as noted and appropriate.</u> <u>Carried 4-0.</u>

6. CONSENT ITEMS

A. <u>Assessing Items</u>

1) Current Use Lien Release: Map 194, Lot 1 - 36 Speare Rd.

2) Current Use Lien Releases

```
Map 201 Lot 7-12 - 19 Warren Road
```

Map 201 Lot 7-13 - 33 Warren Road

Map 201 Lot 7-14 - 16 Warren Road

Map 201 Lot 7-15 - 24 Warren Road

Map 201 Lot 7-16 - 49 Warren Road

Map 202 Lot 4 - 45 Warren Road

Map 202 Lot 2 - 41 Warren Road

Map 194 Lot 10-1 - 7 Warren Rd

Map 194 Lot 10-2 - 4 Warren Rd

Map 194 Lot 10-3 - 125 Standish Lane

Map 194 Lot 10-12 - 98 Standish Lane

Map 201 Lot 7-11 - 15 Warren Rd

B. Water/Sewer Items

1) Water Abatement Account # 3506585701 - 83 River Road

C. License, Permits, Policies

- 1) Raffle Permit The Dalton Shumsky Foundation
- 2) Outdoor Gathering Hudson Speedway Car Show

D. <u>Donations</u>

E. Acceptance of Minutes

1) Minutes of the August 25, 2020 Meeting

E. Calendar

9/16	6:30 pm	Library Trustees - Hills Memorial Library
9/16	7:00 pm	Planning Board - Hudson Community Center
9/17	7:00 pm	Benson Park Committee - BOS Meeting Room
9/21	7:00 pm	Traffic Advisory Committee - Buxton Meeting Room
9/22	7:00 pm	Board of Selectmen - BOS Meeting Room

7. OLD BUSINESS

The Town Administrator read the motions made after non-public at the 8/25/20 Board of Selectmen meeting.

1) Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Coutu to hire Brittany Lewis as a full time police officer with a starting salary of \$26.84 (Step 1 with Certification) per hour, all in accordance with the Hudson Police Employee Association Contract. Carried 5-0.

2) Selectman Martin made a motion seconded by Selectman Roy to adjourn at 9:01p.m. Carried 5-0.

8. NEW BUSINESS

A. Amend Town Code Chapter 264, Racetracks and Chapter 158 Alcohol Beverages

Chairman Morin recognized Town Administrator, Steve Malizia who said, as you recall, the Board had the required two public hearings to amend the Town Code. Specifically the 264, Racetracks, Motor Vehicle and Chapter 158-4 Alcoholic Beverages to allow for the sale of beer and wine in a confined area of the Hudson Speedway. There was no comment, I believe, no public representation. So at this point if the Board wishes to amend the Town Code, there's a motion to amend Town Code Chapter 264-4 Racetracks, Motor Vehicle Regulations by striking paragraph A in its entirety and Town Code Chapter 158-4 Alcoholic Beverage Restrictions by striking the words "and racetracks" from the paragraph. Selectman Roy made this motion, seconded by Selectman Martin. Carried 4-0.

B. DPW - Purchase Roadside Mower & Brush Cutter

Chairman Morin recognized Public Works Director, Jess Forrence. Mr. Forrence said, good evening members of the Board. Public Works has a couple items on the agenda. First one is the roadside mower. What we're looking to do is purchase a, it's actually a Bobcat. Please don't get it confused with the one that has the giant arm that reaches up to 20 feet. That is not what this thing is. People have asked me about it. This is to cut sewer easements, drain easements, landfill cap, anything around guardrail use and minor brush. It's not that big tractor we were talking about. You'll see that going through the budget process to see if we can get that replaced. The Bobcat multipurpose piece of equipment is going to come out of the large equipment line item. It is going through the Sourcewell government agency. So we know we got a pretty good price on it for the sum of \$58,326. It was approved through the budget process.

Chairman Morin asked if there were any questions. Selectman Roy said, so it says here it wasn't budgeted for FY21. Mr. Forrence replied, it was in the budget process there was \$40,000 funded for it. We came back to it that machine was not available anymore. It was discontinued. We searched for its replacement it came in a little bit higher. We're looking to take some money from the truck account that we saved the money on to cover the cost of that. Selectman Roy then asked, okay, so \$40,000 was budgeted for this but the rest was not? Okay.

Seeing no further questions, <u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Coutu to waive</u> the competitive bidding requirements as outlined in Town Code 98-1 (C) and to purchase a Bobcat roadside mower and brush cutter from Bobcat at a contracted cost from Sourcewell Municipal Contracting Agency in the amount of \$58,326 from the Streets large operating equipment account (5552-401) as recommended by the Public Works Director and the Finance Director. Carried 4-0.

C. Sewer Camera Systems Upgrade

Mr. Forrence explained this upgrade system is software and hardware to keep us up to date on information that we can collect. Actually tv and lines, this will also interface with the Town's GIS system so if we do locate something that's not quite right or a service that we see that we don't have any paperwork on we'd be able to bring it up on GIS and actually locate it on there for further use. This is the very baseline. It is expandable years to come down the road. But there's a couple good products in there too. This was also budgeted through the FY21 budget process and I'd like to go forward with it. And it is shopped through the HGAC Buy Municipal Contracting.

Selectman Coutu was recognized by the Chairman and asked, Jess we presently have a camera system for the sewers, correct? Mr. Forrence replied, correct. Selectman Coutu went on to ask, we're

going to replace that hardware? Mr. Forrence replied, yes, the hardware is going to be added to the one we have, the software we're going to replace. Selectman Coutu then asked the hardware is going to be added to the one we have? It's a better camera? Mr. Forrence replied yes, when you're going through the pipeline you see the circle in front of you. If you're going over an offset joint that's our biggest concern. You can't look behind you. So with the rearview camera, you can go over the offset joint and then look behind you to see what the problem is. It's also got an elevating system in it that if you come in to where there's a sag in the line, which is common, you can elevate it up so your camera lens is out of the liquid to look. But we're not buying a whole new camera system. This is just to add on. Selectman Coutu then asked, in the process of controlling the camera when you reach the offset joint I can see how you can miss it on the front side camera. On the backside camera can you slow it down to get a better view and stall it and absolutely take a photo? Mr. Forrence replied, you can bring the camera up just beyond the offset joint so the back camera is so you can see it, stop the camera, and you can put up two screens with the new software, on your monitor so you can still see the front and you can still see the back also. Selectman Coutu asked, we can capture a still picture of the problem on our monitor? Mr. Forrence replied, yes. Selectman Coutu thanked Mr. Forrence.

Seeing no further questions <u>Selectman Martin made a motion</u>, <u>seconded by Selectman Roy to waive</u> the competitive bidding requirements as outlined in Town Code 98-1 (C) and to purchase hardware and software upgrades from CUES at a contracted cost to HGAC Buy Municipal Contracting Agency in the amount of \$27,403 from the Sewer Operations and Maintenance large operating equipment account (5562-401) as recommended by the Public Works Director and the Finance Director. Carried 4-0.

D. Transfer Station Facility Upgrades

Chairman Morin recognized Jess Forrence, Public Works Director and Elvis Dhima, Town Engineer. Mr. Dhima started off by saying, thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the Board. As you might recall, last year this Board planned for a \$40,000 Master Plan for the landfill. The purpose of that is to get the landfill to be setup with our facility at some point. So we're looking for a master plan of the current landfill to convert it to a transfer station at some point. And if possible, have the ability to hand that over to a third party if we need to do that. We went out to bid. Public Works and Engineering worked together on this one. We sent it out to four (4) contractors with a mandatory pre-bid. Budget was \$40,000 and we got three (3) bids. Weston & Sampson for \$36,222, Tighe & Bond for \$38,500 and CMA for \$39,200. We did a breakdown of what we believe are some things, criteria, that we need to look at. You have a matrix here. DPW and Engineering worked together to do a breakdown and came up to the same conclusion. Basically what it comes down to is we believe we're getting the most services out of the CMA Engineers. In comparison, we compared the prices, we compared the understanding and what they were bringing to the table and our recommendation tonight would be to hire CMA for the services in front of us.

Mr. Dhima went on to say, what you also have in front of you is an 11x17 layout of what we're looking to do in the long run as well. So basically convert the landfill to a transfer station. State of the art transfer station through multiple steps.

Selectman Coutu was recognized and said, Mr. Dhima, we have used the services of Weston & Sampson considerably in the past. What is it about their bid, they are the low bidder, that you are excluding them, I'm sorry, you're not excluding anybody. They're all here for us to absorb. Why are you selecting a higher bidder? Mr. Dhima replied, if you look at the matrix that was provided to you, there was a scoring matrix. The parameters we looked at was cost, conceptual...Selectman Coutu interrupted Mr. Dhima and asked, who did the scoring? Mr. Dhima replied, Engineering and Public Works together. Selectman Coutu then said, so you and Jess? Mr. Dhima replied, yes, and staff as well. Jay and Mr. Lavacchia, yes. Engineering did their own independent and we came to basically the same conclusion that we're getting the most out of it. The things we're looking at, to answer your question, Selectman Coutu was who's maximizing the site the most? Which engineering firm is looking to get the most out of the containers? That was one of the things that they scored the highest for example. They're saying that the container layout for CMA can be 10-20 containers versus the

other ones are up to 14 and the other one did not show anything at all. They simply didn't have the layout. The other thing we're looking at for example is a breakdown of the existing conditions. What they thought was the existing conditions. CMA did a better job of describing exactly what we're dealing with the operations. And also better understanding of where we're heading as well and what the needs could be. That's why, if you look at the layout that's been provided to you, you will see that they took their time to really understand to what the Town's needs were during the pre-bid when we had the discussion of what we envisioned. To your point, it is different to what Mr. Forrence described earlier when you're buying something, and there's a good. And it's a little different when you're hiring someone for services. There's a bit of a difference there. That's why you have to look at everything. Are you getting all the things that you're requesting? And who is doing it better and are you getting the most for the buck? But, all three of them came within budget. They're all reasonable. It's just a matter to who we think we're going to get the best product, or best master plan out of this.

Selectman Coutu then asked, you're recommending who? Mr. Dhima replied, we're recommending CMA in this case. We, Engineering and Public Works. They scored the highest on the matrix. So CMA scored 66, Tighe scored 61 and Weston & Sampson scored 60. This is out of 70. They were very, very close. It's just a matter to what we thought we could get the most out of the services. Mr. Forrence added, we actually thought they put together a better package right from the container walls to where the containers were located. Where they were looking to put the building if it ever goes that far. We really like their setup. Selectman Coutu then said, let me ask you a question that goes a little beyond this. Once this is approved, how long is the process going to be for them to come back with the engineering plan? Mr. Dhima replied, so their delivery was sometime late November. The first task under this master plan is to build a retaining wall that's going to handle current and future container layouts. As you all know, going to the landfill that is basically made from the Public Works with concrete blocks. We want to make sure that we have something that's stable, it's safer and obviously structurally sound. So that would include the design. We're hoping, and we're still in discussions, that as soon as that's done we'll come in front of the Board of Selectmen to ask for this here, if entertained, to do the retaining wall for FY22 which could be as much as half a million dollars. To accommodate somewhere between 14-20 containers. To start that phase. Then walk into the building, get into the scale, get into the final of what the operation is going to look like. Selectman Coutu went on to say, so Mr. Dhima, we don't have the funds presently to precede once the engineering plan is complete. We have to wait for the FY22 budget approval and you're gonna request a half a million dollars and then how much more after that? Mr. Dhima replied, the facility that we're looking to do is somewhere close between \$3.5-\$4 million dollars when all is said and done over a period of five years. We understand that we're not going to be able to do this in one shot so we're trying to break this down to where it needs to be over a period of five years. Selectman Coutu asked, what happens if the voters reject the request for a half a million dollars for the retaining wall? Mr. Dhima replied, that's okay. We have a master plan in place so when we decide to do that again, it's there, ready to go. The need for the retaining wall is there and it will not go away. Selectman Coutu said, based on your conversations with the, amongst yourselves, relative to reviewing the three bids, what is the lifespan of those bids? What do you feel, at what point do we have to go back out for engineering? Mr. Dhima replied, if we get a master plan on the layout, and the building layout and an idea. The design for the wall is not going to change. The cost for the wall will change. It could be 3-5% every year, depending how the economy goes. It could go down 3-5% if everything tanks. But as far as the retaining walls you're gonna have that number good for 3-5 years. Cost associated with the retaining wall. As far as the building and the needs, those would change. And we still don't know what those are because they need to tell the designer, whoever you pick tonight, what those needs are. Are we going to recycle there? Are we not going to recycle? Are we going to focus on certain needs? It's something that Mr. Forrence basically has taken upon himself to make sure that it's heading in the right direction. So at least we're heading five years from now. Because recycling is gonna be big business. Selectman Coutu then said, I know that both of you are very familiar with the Nashua operation. I'm sure that that's served as a purposeful guide for designing this particular transfer station. There's isn't perfect, but it's damn good, if I might say.

Selectman Coutu went on to say, Mr. Forrence, in the long-term, let's make an assumption here. The assumption is that the voters are going to approve the cost of the wall and then subsequently they'll approve the money to complete the project and we have a transfer station. Is it your intent, and we're

looking now, three years out, there's a lot of construction going on in Town relative to residential properties. We're going to have more and more an influx of more residents in our community. Is it your intent to open up the Transfer Station on a daily basis, do you want to maintain a once a month or twice a month? Mr. Forrence replied, it would have to be six days a week. Putting a shift in there, but yeah, it would be six days a week and we would open it to other haulers coming in. When Elvis and I....Selectman Coutu interrupted saying, at a fee. Mr. Forrence, replied, at a fee, the scales tell no lies. When Elvis and I took a ride to Keene and looked at their facility where they have waste management coming in. They have their own facility but they have other carriers coming in for disposal, the thing is funded by itself. It runs by itself and with a pretty good profit margin. So he said, if you can afford to do it right up front, that's the way to go. They do a lot better in recycling. They do a lot better with hazardous waste, TV's to get rid of everything will cost a dollar, I'm underrating what it will probably cost, but everything is going to have a fee to it. That would only benefit the Town doing it that way. Mr. Dhima added, the intent for this whole exercise, starting last year, was to reduce the cost of the current operations in place. The intent is for this facility to pay for itself. Then it's just gravy after 5-10 years.

Selectman Coutu said, my closing comment is my intent in putting both of you through this exercise is to answer all the questions now, because people are going to ask us where are we going with this. I want to show that as a community, as a Town, we have a vision, it's in the master plan and we would like to see it through. And we'll do it in stages if necessary so we don't burden the tax payers all up front with this. But ultimately, we're setting ourselves in a very good position to realize some income from accepting outside loaders to come in and to dump their wares and we'll sort them appropriately but we'll make sure that we have more than the cost of recovery from them in order to make this thing work. Thank you. I thank you both for explaining it thoroughly.

Selectman Roy was recognized and said, so, once the retaining wall is built, does that sort of immediately increase your capacity? Mr. Forrence replied, the capacity will be the same. I mean every year it grows a little bit more with houses but right now we fill all the dumpsters that we have up there now. We don't have room for any more. And a lot of the debris goes onto the ground. So we spend the next Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, reloading dumpsters again. This way we'll be able to get all the dumpsters brought against the new retaining walls and everybody will be able to throw them in there saving us time that way. So even if the building sets out a couple years, we still have what we have now, to work with. Mr. Dhima added, and the other thing to add to it is, access to containers right now currently, you have to back up and you only have the short distance of the container. We're going to try to turn them so that their wider, so now a few people can. Mr. Forrence added, you can probably get three cars backed up to one dumpster instead of one, cutting down the line for the people coming in. it's not bad on a nice day, but on a hot day or a rainy day it sure does make things a little bit more difficult. Mr. Dhima said, it will speed the process up. People in and out of there. Longer lines will be avoided. Most important thing is it will be safer to back up into these now. In addition to that the wall is gonna add a slab to the bottom. Currently right now they just sit on dirt. So any spills or so now it's going to be contained and help with compliance as well. And that's where everything is heading. Selectman Roy then said, and then ultimately the larger projects you had talked about, it being open every day, six days a week, would that mean that you would need an increase in manning? Would you need to hire specific people to run? Mr. Forrence replied, yes, you would probably need three more people. At least three people. I don't want to say that on tv and then be held to three. So at least three people to make it work. Selectman Roy replied saying, okay I just want to be clear about what all of this means. Mr. Forrence then said, you know if we find that subbing it out is the way to go and that can be done through a contract, you got to remember, next year we've got to go out to bid for the trash contract. It's going to go up. Pinard has been very good to us in the last number of years holding onto their contract numbers, but he's already warned us that going out whether it's him or somebody else, you're going to see the numbers go up. So if we can work towards that, it goes out a couple years, we make the contract a three year contract if that's what the thing would be, if we have to extend for a year we can do it that way also.

Selectman Martin was recognized and said, thank you Mr. Chairman. I just want to remind everybody in the room, if not aware, we're behind in times. The little town that's nestled in our hip there, Litchfield, is way ahead of the curve. And they're open on Sunday's. I went with my brother. He's a

Town resident over there but we're behind the times. I think it's time for us to move forward. Thank you.

Selectman Coutu was recognized and said, Mr. Forrence, I know that next year is going to be a tough year because of negotiations with Pinard, will we also be looking at other firms? To which Mr. Forrence replied, oh yes, this is going to be open. Selectman Coutu said, I know they've been good to us but. Mr. Forrence said, Pinard wouldn't do another extension. Selectman Coutu said, when we reach over a million dollars, it's time to look everywhere. Okay, thank you. I'm good, thank you Mr. Chairman. Seeing no further questions, Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to award the bid for engineering services for the Transfer Station Facility Upgrades to CMA Engineers, Inc. in an amount not to exceed \$39,200 with funds from the Public Works Facility Building Maintenance account (5515-224) as recommended by the Town Engineer, the Public Works Director and the Finance Director. Carried 4-0.

E. Bid Recommendation - Industrial Park Drive Infiltration and Inflow

Chairman Morin again recognized Elvis Dhima, Town Engineer and Jess Forrence, Director of Public Works. Mr. Dhima started by saying, thank you Mr. Chairman. As you all know in 2016 the Town undertook major town-wide infiltration and inflow, related to our sewer system. Out of the eight sub systems three of them were a bit above standards when it come to the I & I but the overall system is below standards so we're doing really good as far as what we're taking into the pipe. The Industrial Park Drive is one of the three systems that needs to be looked at. And that's exactly what we're doing. So we budgeted \$30,000 for this. We went out to bid and we got three bids back Weston and Sampson was \$22,900, Fuss & O'Neil was \$28,506 and Wright-Pierce was right on target at \$30,000.

When we looked at the bids, and what was proposed, when it comes to the infiltration and inflow studies, it can be done in different ways. You can do a smoke detection, which is basically pump smoke into the mains and see where it's coming from illegals, such as catch basins, drains out of the house, things of that sort. Another way is to put meters into the manholes and measure how much sewer is getting through when you have runoff so you can do a comparison of how much sewer is going through versus how much rain and where there's a correlation, then you know that the water is coming from illegal connections. Also you can do a dye test. Some of these require you to get inside the buildings. Weston and Sampson was the lowest, but they also focused 100% on smoke and going to people's homes. There's a lot of them. About 117 buildings. In a perfect world we wouldn't have to deal with COVID-19. That would have been the way to go. And we would have picked that one. But because we don't believe we're going to have a good return on people allowing us into their homes and doing what we need to do, to get this done, we believe the needs to get the job done while trying to be sensitive to what's going on out there would be with Fuss & O'Neil, which is the second. Their approach is doing a meter flow approach, doing some smoke detections, which would be local in some areas of the sub-systems if needed. They'll also work with Public Works to do cameras. So we felt through the review approach that we felt that Fuss & O'Neil was the way to go for this one because we're currently dealing with. So that's that. We'll take any questions you might have.

Selectman Coutu was recognized by the Chairman and said, again, Mr. Dhima, I don't know what happened with, I mean, that's, I'm not involved in the day to day operations of your office, or anybody else's for that matter. But again, we have a \$6,000 difference in the bid. Weston & Sampson was always our go to company and they're being overlooked for \$6,000 more. So I'm gonna ask you this, what I think is probably the most critical question I can ask based on my knowledge, when I look at the score sheet, there is a four point variance between Weston & Sampson and Fuss & O'Neil. When I go down and I would assume, I hate assuming anything but, Jess were you involved in this process as well? Mr. Forrence replied, yes. Selectman Coutu then went on to say, okay, when I look at the score sheet and I look at Fuss & O'Neil versus Weston & Sampson, of those, of the following: Kickoff Meeting, everybody scored the same thing, we'll skip that one. Flow Metering and all the other

categories, which of those are the two most critical? Mr. Dhima answered, so, for Flow Metering, Weston & Sampson scored a 3 versus Wright-Pierce and Fuss & O'Neil scored 5. The reason they scored low is because they don't' have any flow metering at all. Again, because their approach is 100% smoke and going to basically buildings. So they scored the lowest. They didn't score zero, we still gave them something, but they did not score, obviously as high as the other two firms, which are basically gonna drop manholes. They're gonna drop meters into manholes. As you can see on the description, Wright-Pierce is doing two locations in eight weeks, versus Fuss & O'Neil is doing two locations in four weeks. Versus Weston & Sampson is not doing any at all. So we still give them a rating but they did not score as high as the other two. Again, I think Weston & Sampson would have been our pick on this one, if we're not dealing with basically people still being nervous about letting people in when it comes to what we're dealing with out there. That's what that smoke detection will require, having to go into facilities. We still might have to do that, but not at the entire system. I think that's going to be hard. We might not be able to get the results.

Selectman Coutu followed up saying, again, let's look at house building inspections, which is at the bottom of the list there. I look across to Wright-Pierce, Fuss & O'Neil and Weston & Sampson. I notice that under Fuss & O'Neil it says here, that the inspections of industrial buildings included in the proposal. Where that is an exclusive attribute to them, it's attributed to them, are you in essence telling the Board that Wright-Pierce and Weston & Sampson were not going to inspect industrial buildings? Mr. Dhima replied saying, no. for house building...Selectman Coutu interrupted him asking. did you just say no? Is the answer no? You started off by saying no. I asked a question, is Wright-Pierce and Weston & Sampson based on the fact that you put the notification under Fuss & O'Neil that inspections of industrial buildings is included in the proposal that Wright & Pierce and Weston & Sampson did not have it included in their proposal? Mr. Dhima answered saying, well first of all they did not score the same. I'm getting a little confused, Selectman Coutu interrupted Mr. Dhima again saying I'm asking a yes or no question. Mr. Dhima then said, I can't answer it because you're comparing three and five. Weston & Sampson scored a 5 because I'm saying, after 117 inspections that are included in the proposal, they scored a 5. Why Fuss & O'Neil scored a 5 is because it says inspection of industrial buildings proposed in the proposal. Selectman Coutu then said, that's what I'm asking you. Were the other two offering to inspect industrial buildings? Mr. Dhima said, Fuss & O'Neil was, ves, versus Wright-Pierce says optional, additional costs. So they scored 3. Selectman Coutu then said, it says optional additional costs. It doesn't tell us. Mr. Dhima said, they're saying they might do it, for extra cost. So I'm basically saying that for what they're proposing there's none of that. They still didn't score zero, they scored the 3 but the other two are saying that they're going to go into people's homes and they're going to do inspections. That's why they scored both a 5. Weston & Sampson is doing the entire thing and Fuss & O'Neil is saying we're going to focus on industrial buildings included in the proposal, which is basically the heavy users. So that's why they both scored a 5 versus Wright-Pierce scored a 3 because they're saying they can do that for extra cost. Selectman Coutu then said and you're saying of the three, Weston & Sampson scored the worst on flow metering, which is very important, but the way, and flow meter evaluations, why? What was it that they showed or lacked to show? Mr. Dhima answered saying because they're not doing it at all. Selectman Coutu the said, pardon me? Mr. Dhima replied, they're not doing it at all Mr. Coutu, versus the other two are. Selectman Coutu then said, why would they score a 3 if they weren't doing it I'd put a zero. Mr. Dhima said, I know. We're trying to be basically, even with that said, we gave them something, but yeah, it could have been zero. We were not trying to go extreme. We were just trying to say...Selectman Coutu interrupted Mr. Dhima and said, it's not extreme, if they're not going to do it it's a zero. Mr. Dhima said. I know but if that was the case....Selectman Coutu again interrupted Mr. Dhima and said I don't answer a question on a test. I don't meant o interrupt but if I don't answer a question on the test I get a zero for it. Not a half a point. Mr. Dhima said, I know what you're saying but looking at everything, if we start with five or zero it would have been tough. Even with when you do the cost for example, Weston & Sampson got a five. I did not give a zero to Fuss & O'Neil and Wright-Pierce because I did not think that obviously if you're the low bid or not, we gave a four to Fuss & O'Neil because they were the second one and I gave them a three. Yeah, you can sit here and discuss the scoring. We felt like trying to keep it balance. Like I said, if you look at the total, we felt like they were very close but we believe that they best way to get this thing done without interfering with day to day lives out there and people's facilities we need to do a hybrid and that's what Fuss & O'Neil is saying. They're doing meters, they're doing flows, they're doing dye tests, and

they're going to work with DPW. We feel that that might be the best way to get the results without interfering. This could be done during the winter, flu season. This could be done next year. We have until June 30th. We felt like maybe the number is there. We're not really getting everyone upset about smoking everyone out of there and not getting into people's homes. We're dealing with a bit of that when we're replacing meters for the water. Sometimes we get in, sometimes we can't. We have to move to the next person. People are very nervous out there with what's going on. We're trying to be sensitive to that. Selectman Coutu then said, I understand all of that Mr. Dhima. I don't' disagree with who you selected. There's an exercise. Someone's going to call and say how come you went with the highest bidder. I deal with subjectivity. Mr. Dhima said, I expected that. Selectman Coutu then said, there's something very subjective when you say you're going to give a guy a three when he says not going to do it, you should have put a zero. Then that would have eliminated the reason why we went with the others. The score would have been significantly different.

Mr. Dhima went on to say, we we're trying to be fair to the process. Selectman Coutu said, don't get me wrong, you're serving us well. <u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Martin to award the bid for inspectional services for the Industrial Park pump station to Fuss & O'Neill Inc. in an amount not to exceed \$28,506 with funds from the Sewer Capital Projects Inflow and Infiltration Study account (5564-625) as recommended by the Town Engineer, the Public Works Director and the Finance Director.</u>

F. Zach's Field Update

Chairman Morin again recognized Town Engineer Elvis Dhima and Director of Public Works Jess Forrence. Mr. Dhima started by saying, as you all know, there's been a significant amount of work done at Zach's Field. The biggest task basically has been removing about 1500 yards of fill from previous operations. The contractor has expressed a need to stay there longer in return for additional services. What we're dealing with right now, if you've been out there, is a significant amount of boulders that Public Works would like to use to do that they need to moved and broken down. The contract has the ability to bring a hammer in and basically break them down and move them where they need to be for future use. In addition to that during the paving program there's been some excess material there at the site. The contractor has again agreed to take about 300 yards of that in return to stay there until March 30, 2021. What you're being presented in front of you tonight are two motions. To entertain it if you'd like or not to entertain it if you wish. It's up to the Board which way you want to go. Mr. Malizia then asked, the current contract expires when? Mr. Dhima said the current contract expires October 31st and the new contract you have in front of you tonight, if you decide to proceed, it's March 30, 2021. The liability insurance and the bond is in place until March 31, 2021.

Selectman Martin said, I've been to the site several times and this contractor is doing exactly what he said he would do. No more, no less. Maybe more, we don't see it. But he's done exactly what he stated he would do and I would support the motion to extend it to extend the agreement. Selectman Coutu was recognized and said, I believe, Mr. Chairman, you and I we have been to the site on several occasions. On one day you had just left, you suggested that I go over and take a look and it was almost off hours when I got there and they were still in the back continuing to work. So I would agree with <u>Selectman Martin</u> that there are times that they have gone above and beyond and I know that you've been very pleased, both of you, with the work. So therefore, <u>I'll make a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy, to extend the agreement between TTD Earth Tech, Inc., and the Town of Hudson until March 31, 2021. Carried 4-0.</u>

Chairman Morin then said, while I got you two here, reference to what we're gonna do with that. Should we form some type of committee to get moving on that where it's been sitting so long and we see light at the end of the tunnel to see what we're gonna do there. I know we talked though the family. Mr. Malizia said, they would have to give us some formal notification that they're giving up their right to do whatever they want to do there. Selectman Coutu then said, it's not the family. Mr. Malizia said, it's the Hudson Bears organization. We have not received any correspondence from

them. Selectman Coutu then said, we notified, notified. Mr. Chairman I think we should send a certified letter, notifying them that their failure to notify us whether or not they intend to use it, will nullify the lease. I mean, I don't know what else to do at this point. It might have to be run by the attorney, because this was voted on by the citizens. Mr. Malizia then said, we can certainly send them a letter asking their intention and then respond accordingly. Selectman Coutu said, do we know who to contact? Mr. Malizia said, the Hudson Bears. That's who the lease agreement is with. Selectman Coutu then said, do we know who the president of the Hudson Bears is? Mr. Malizia said, I'm sure we can find out.

Chairman Morin then said, we can take this up later then, how we're going to proceed. Mr. Dhima said, this spring would be the right time to. Right after March 30th.

G. HPD - Capital reserve Request

Chairman Morin recognized Police Chief, Bill Avery. Chief Avery started off by saying thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the Board of Selectmen. I'm here before you tonight to request to expend \$3,555.00 out of our Bullet Proof Vest Capital Reserve Account. The bullet proof vests each cost \$1,185.00. They expire every five years. So we have an account. Remaining balance in that account is \$60,000. These new vests will be replacing current vests that three of our police officers are currently wearing as they're expiring very shortly. Selectman Coutu made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to allow the Police Department to utilize funds in the amount of \$3,555.00 from the Bullet Proof Vest Capital Reserve Account to purchase three (3) new Bullet Proof Vests at \$1,185.00 per vest. Selectman Martin was recognized and asked, Chief, the new gear that they're wearing on the above, does that accommodate for a vest and if it does is it better or worse for your use? Chief Avery explained, those are merely vest carriers. So instead of wearing the vest underneath the uniform shirt, the vest goes inside that carrier. The outside carrier has to be in conjunction with the make of the bullet proof vest. There's no mix-matching or they don't guarantee them. Selectman Martin replied saying, okay, that answers my question. Thank you. Carried 4-0.

H. HPD - Facility Concerns

Chief Avery was again recognized by the Chairman. He stated, sorry to bring this news to the Board. Over the last several months, Captain Bianchi and Dan Clarke, our maintenance man has been experiencing a lot of equipment failures throughout our structure. The building is 25 years old. Some of the things on here include the chiller system, the fire alarm system, which inspector Dube from the Fire Department has basically said we're running on a battery backup. It needs to be replaced, sooner, rather than later. I mentioned it to the Board last year, I believe, the HVAC at the Kirby Building is on its last leg. We were told by the company to make sure we put a carbon monoxide detector inside that building, just in case there is a leak. Again, it's on its last leg. Then a pump bearing assembly, which we're going to be able to save some money because Dan is capable of replacing those. I currently do not have the money in my budget to fix these items. As you can see that they are quite costly. The Trane Chiller System is at \$21,856. The fire alarm system is at \$16,540. The HVAC for the Kirby Building across the street is \$13,999. The pump bearing assembly is \$3,300 for a total of \$56,695.

My request, and I sought some advice from Mr. Malizia, is to utilize the Capital Reserve Fund Repairs to Building that was established on March 11, 2014, which currently has enough money in that fund to go ahead and fund this project. I have no other way of funding it other than to go way over on my line item. Selectman Roy was recognized and asked, when was the Trane Chiller System installed? Chief Avery said, my understanding is all of these systems were initially installed. And have been getting repaired throughout the years. Selectman Roy then asked, so do you know what the life cycle of that piece of equipment is? Chief Avery replied, I don't and I'm sorry. I don't have that answer. Selectman Roy then said, okay, I would take it's the same for all of them? Chief Avery replied I'm fairly certain, except for the pump bearing assemblies, those kind of go not on a regular basis but they don't last

forever. Dan has replaced some throughout the years. Selectman Roy then said, I just think maybe it would be a good idea if we knew the lifecycle and we could start addressing them before it becomes an issue. You know what I'm saying? If we replace this now and the lifecycle is 15 years from now we should be looking at it. Chief Avery replied, they have multiple, so the Chiller System has two compressors in it that have failed in the past month. We have two other compressors so we're basically running on half of what we should be for our chiller system. And as you know the temperatures this summer, we limped to the finish line. I know the temperatures have cooled off now, so we should be good to go. But I don't' want to go until now the last couple of these going. Great question Selectman Roy, I just don't know the exact lifecycle of the Chiller System. Selectman Roy then said, and again, I would go for all of those items, so that you can plan for the future that we don't get to where it's an emergency kind of thing. Chief Avery agreed and said, we currently budget \$46,000 in this building maintenance. I'm going to be exploring it during this budget cycle. I pulled some numbers like 2018, we spent \$117,000 on building maintenance. \$1903 fiscal year 2015 \$7,000. I was not in this position at that time, so I can't recall exactly what they were for but obviously the building is 25 years old and we're going to have some expenditures. The last thing I'd like to mention is that current Capital Reserve Fund has \$165,820 as of August 31, 2020. Thank you Kathy Carpentier, who provided me that information.

Selectman Martin was recognized and said, thank you Mr. Chairman. I think these upgrades are very important to us. It's definitely important to the safety and well-being of the employees that work in that building. I just want to make a comment that the total cost should come out of the Capital Reserve Fund so that he has that line for other building maintenance issues he might have. I wouldn't want to see it get deducted from that and then have nothing in that line for him for the rest of the year. So if someone is going to make a motion, I'll support it to have it all come out of the Capital Reserve Fund.

Selectman Coutu was recognized. He said, I have a question and I don't know that you have the answer. Chief, we have forfeiture funds and we know that there are restrictions on how we spend forfeiture funds. Have we ever asked for an interpretation from our council as to whether or not we can prorate based on amount of work in house that we do, relative to drug cases to acquire based on the percentage of arrests and work entailed in the drug arrests, based on that percentage could we acquire it for building maintenance? Chief Avery replied saying, sitting here today, and I know the law pretty well sir, no. that is specifically for training and equipment and other accessories that we use during the course of narcotic investigations. I think I'd be pushing the envelope if I was to go ahead and use those funds for this. Selectman Coutu then said so we can buy a vehicle if it's used strictly for drug enforcement. Chief Avery said, we can buy vests because we wear bullet proof vests while we're conducting drug investigations. We can send people to drug training. We could buy a laptop if the narcotic guys were using it. So it is lenient in some ways, but in some ways it is not. Selectman Coutu then said well with the Town Administrator and the Finance Director both in the room, I would ask therefore, not that I object to anything that Selectman Martin just stated. I share the same concern hat Selectman Martin mentioned relative to using up all of the money that we have, we have a total of \$41,900 so we're going to have to use all of that. That's all we have left out of the budget. Then we're going to have to look to appropriate another \$15,000. Would it be a better fiscal practice in this case, for us to take it all out of the Capital Reserve and leave the fund balance that's in there now in anticipation you know we still have til June 30th of next year to have some money to be able to fund. Or do we drain this account and then have him come back and say I need this, its \$20,000 then we have to go to the Capital Reserve. Which is more prudent? Mr. Malizia replied saying, certainly we need to do the repairs. So if he does the repairs and if his budget for some reason could cover it, great. You don't have to put the request in to get the money until the end of the year. You could wait but if you give him approval to do it and for some reason he gets to the end of the year and he doesn't have the money then you'd get it from the fund. We do that with like earned time. So if people cash out their earned time and we absorb it through the year, we get to the end of the year and we don't' have enough to absorb we would go to the trust fund to get it. Selectman Coutu said, he's gonna drain it now. Mr. Malizia said, he's gonna drain it now, yes. Selectman Coutu went on to say, he only has \$41,900, he needs \$56,000. Mr. Malizia responded saying, he'd have to take the money from some other account he has and hope he doesn't spend that. Six of one, half a dozen of another. Selectman Coutu then said, okay so if something comes up three months from now and it's a \$30,000 expense...Mr. Malizia said, he won't have it if he drains this account. Selectman Coutu said, so you're saying that at that time

he would come to us depending on whether or not it's an emergency situation. We're not shining your shoes. Something that's appropriate. Okay, so you're saying that we should drain the account? Mr. Malizia said, I'm just saying that's an option. Selectman Coutu then asked, well, which is more prudent? I suspected that draining the account would be more prudent. The Town Administrator replied, it's always great to keep the money in the account because we don't know what else is going to go too. And it's not a huge account. It's got \$165,000 in it. We got a lot of buildings. Selectman Coutu then asked, so what do we do? Do we drain the account or do we get it from Capital Reserve? Mr. Malizia replied, I'm okay with getting it from Capital Reserve if you want to. Again, you can go up to that amount of money. He then asked the Chief, are you going to do it all at once? Chief Avery replied, we would move pretty quickly on this with winter fast approaching. Mr. Malizia then said, I don't know what you'll have for vacancies. I don't know what you'll have for leftover monies in your budget. We're in September. Selectman Coutu said, well, we have some money. Mr. Malizia said, well, I don't know that. We're not in the wintertime yet either where other things tend to go. Chief Avery added, the fire alarm system will be the first thing getting fixed. That's on battery backup right now. Selectman Coutu said, well then you just have your custodian yell. Okay. I'm all set. Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Selectman Martin was recognized and said I wouldn't support a motion to draw down this account and his budget. I feel it wouldn't be prudent of us to say okay let's draw down this account and come back with any other expenditures and take it from another line item when he may need it for that. Everything in the budget is planned but sometimes it's unanticipated too. So he may need emergency training for fire....Chief Avery said, did you call me a fireman? Chief Buxton, laughing added, everybody needs heroes Chief!" Selectman Martin went on to say, for the policemen to go for training or whatever. So I support what's going on and what needs to be fixed but I can't support a motion to drain the line item in the budget. So. Chairman Morin asked, would you like to make a motion? To which Selectman Martin replied, I make a motion to approve the expenditure of up to \$56,695 from the Major Repairs to Town Buildings Capital Reserve Funds for the repairs to the Hudson Police Station and Hudson Police Annex Building. This was seconded by Selectman Coutu for purpose of discussion. Selectman Coutu then said, do you have an interpretation for what a building maintenance fund is to be used for? Mr. Malizia replied, yes. Selectman Coutu then said, we've had this lengthy discussion. The Town Administrator replied, this is the type of thing that it's for. Repair and replacement of systems....Selectman Coutu interrupted saying, a fire alarm system? The Town Administrator went on to say repair and replacement of major systems in buildings and I consider something of that magnitude a major system. Selectman Coutu questioned that saying, it says major systems in the building in the interpretation of the? Selectman Martin pointed out that the description of this Capital Reserve fund was listed in the packet. Selectman Coutu read it and said that's good enough for me. That has garnered my support. I was just concerned that we don't violate the voter's intent. Motion Carried 4-0.

I. Recommendation to Revise Estimated Revenues for FY21

Chairman Morin recognized Finance Director, Kathy Carpentier. Before discussing this item, Chairman Morin presented Ms. Carpentier with a certificate for 20 years of service to the Town of Hudson. After receiving her certificate, Ms. Carpentier explained one of my duties this time of year is to come before the Board and discuss revenues. We're not setting the tax rate at this point, but it's a component of the taxes. The Town Administrator and I looked at the revenues, the trends that are happening right now, some of the decisions the Board has made and we've made recommendations to decrease some of the line items for the revenue for \$222,000. I believe I gave you some backup on this. For instance, interest on property taxes we decreased about \$60,000 because there was a change in the law on the percentage that the tax collector can keep. We increased Planning Board because we're already at \$86,000 by the tune of \$90,000. We got a letter from DOT, so we decreased the Highway Block Grant by \$29,000 because DOT said that they'd be decreasing our funds. We increased the rates for Police Detail so we increased that by \$30,000. We got a letter from Healthrust, out health insurance company saying they were going to be returning some surplus to us. So we increase that by \$90,000.

Ms. Carpentier went on to say, the big hitter is Recreation Revenues. Town Administrator and I went through each one, you're probably not going to see \$150,000 in Supervised Play because you're not doing that at this point. If you start doing it next June that would technically be for next fiscal year so we zeroed out that line and some of the smaller ones. So I'm coming before you right now to ask you to authorize me to decrease the revenues by \$222.326 on the revised estimated revenues for Fiscal Year 21.

Selectman Coutu was recognized and said, when you're doing this because you brought up the recreation, alright, so we won't realize, what was the revenue figure again, \$150,000? To which Ms. Carpentier replied, correct. Selectman Coutu went on to say, we won't realize \$150,000 but, so, we know there's a budgeted amount to run it. Let's assume it is \$150,000. Because one is an expense, you can't offset it by saying okay, we don't have to spend the money, so it's a zero because you have to treat each one as separately when we're reporting to the DRA, we have to report. Mr. Malizia replied, correct, we have to report expenses. Selectman Coutu went on to say, so we'll report this now because we're going to be offsetting, what we spend we can't tabulate til the end of the year. Mr. Malizia replied, well we didn't spend it this summer. Selectman Coutu answered, no we didn't but it doesn't get tabulated til next year. Til the end of the fiscal year. Ms. Carpentier replied saying, well, technically we have already been authorized for a certain appropriation. The voters approve it and that's how much money we're gonna raise in taxes. If we don't' spend the \$150,000 we in theory would return it, but unfortunately it is part of the tax calculation because we've been approved to raise and appropriate that dollars. Selectman Coutu said, what made me feel good, I saw the .07cent increase, but then we have the offset. I don't want the voters to panic saying whoa we're reducing by \$222,000, seven cents is correct but with the increase in property values it should offset it. Ms. Carpentier was recognized and said, so this \$222,000 decrease in revenue is a seven cent increase to the municipal tax rate. However, we had budgeted to have a valuation increase of \$15 million dollars and it ended up being \$50 million dollars. So that's an eight cent offset. So it's gonna kind of be a neutral tax rate for the municipality. I do want to say thought that estimated the tax rate right now, on the municipal side it will be going up. We did a lot of things last year catching up new civil engineer, highway guys, couple contracts, so the municipal tax rate is going up. Mr. Malizia added, but the voters voted for that. In theory that was what they were voting for. Ms. Carpentier added, so when I say neutral change, I'm not initiating a change right now but there will be an increase to the municipal tax rate at this point. In a month or so, I will be back once all the pieces, the counties done, DRA is done, all the forms are submitted with an estimated tax rate. But at this point this is the most conservative approach to take because you decided not to do Rec programs so we should decrease the revenues by those amounts. Some of the laws have changed so. Mr. Malizia added, the interest on property taxes went down from 18 and twelve to I think it was 6 and 8 if you recall. There was a legal change. We can't charge 12% or 18% anymore. Selectman Coutu added, I appeal to anyone who wants to get married to come to Hudson to get married. Laughter.

Ms. Carpentier added, I think I skipped one. We also decreased the interest on investments by \$100,000 because we're just not realizing that right now with the state of economy. She then went on to say I'm asking a <u>motion to approve the Revised Estimated Revenues for Fiscal Year 2021 in the amount of \$17,673,854 as recommended by the Finance Director and Town Administrator.</u>
Selectman Roy made this motion and it was seconded by Selectman Coutu. Carried 4-0.

J. Fiscal Year 2022 BOS Budget Schedule

Ms. Carpentier said I guess I'll start. So I just take the initiative of creating this calendar for you and pretty much follow the same routine year after year. Just making sure that we hit any deadlines that we need to hit. The biggest one is at the bottom of the page, the Deliberative Session. We get to go first for the Deliberative Session this year, so that is on January 30th. I try to miss some of your bigger meetings. You know, Planning Board or ZBA. I did send this out to the Department Heads just to give them a heads up in case they had any big conflicts and I didn't' hear of any. You'll have your budget books or electronic books in your hands by October 9th. That is the goal. The Department Heads are already working on the budgets. The Town Administrator added, and we're first with the Budget Committee, correct? So we'll be with them in November? Ms. Carpentier replied, right, that's correct.

So I will deliver the books to the Budget Committee on October, I forget what day it is. Mr. Malizia added, 30th. Ms. Carpentier continued on saying, October 30th. The School, it doesn't pertain to us, did ask for because they're second in the rotation, the Budget Committee just granted them a couple extra weeks. If they get both books they can't look at them all at the same time anyway. So they're getting our books earlier than the School. The School asked for a couple extra weeks. I don't see that we need the extra time.

Chairman Morin asked if there were any questions. Seeing none, Selectman Coutu started to make a motion when Ms. Carpentier interrupted him saying, if you don't have any conflicts I don't know that, do we need a motion? The Town Administrator said, you can make one or you can do it by consensus. Whatever you prefer. Chairman Morin said, I'm good with it. Selectman Roy said I'm fine with it. Selectman Martin said I'm fine with it. Selectman Coutu was recognized and he said I'm going to object to a consensus on the basis of our being chastised for not having legitimate motions made as opposed to consensus. Chairman Morin replied, okay, so make your motion please. <u>Selectman Coutu made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to approve the FY2022 BOS Budget Schedule.</u> <u>Carried 4-0.</u>

K. Correspondence from Governor Sununu's Office

Chairman Morin said, item K is the correspondence from the Governor. I think we pretty much covered that if everybody's good to move on, no further comments on that? The Town Administrator asked, did you want to read Selectman McGrath's comments? To which the Chairman replied, yes we already talked about that.

L. August 2020 Revenues & Expenditures

Chairman Morin recognized Town Administrator, Steve Malizia. Mr. Malizia started off by saying, it's early into the year obviously, two months. Not really a long time to establish any patterns at 17% of the year. Again, really too early to call any patterns. We do encumbrances so that will throw some of the percentages off because we commit to trash contract, we put a legal purchase order out. Auto registrations still seem to be doing pretty well. We're slightly ahead, but not by very much. And we booked no interest year for investments. Doesn't mean there hasn't been any, it just means it hasn't been booked yet. So that shows at zero. But again, two months in really no trends at this point developing. Chairman Morin asked if there were questions or comments. Selectman Martin said, just a question. What are we slightly ahead of on auto registrations? It says 17.5%. Are we slightly ahead of 2020? The Town Administrator replied, no, if you looked at a pure linear, each month, we're 17%. .5% ahead of the 17%. Not over last year, just over this year's budget.

9. REMARKS BY THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

The Administrator said just a couple of quick things. I just want to remind everybody that the Hudson Chamber Covid-19 Small Business Partnership Grant applications are due by Friday the 18th. We've received eight so far. We have not deliberated or reviewed them as the committee. I just want everyone to know that those are due and the Chamber is well aware of that too, that they're due on Friday.

The only other thing I have is Rec Soccer starts on Saturday. As you recall we're doing a soccer program this year for the youth. I think kindergarten through 8th grade. And on Sunday we're starting a tennis program for the youth. So those two outdoor activities will be starting this weekend. All the protocols have been put in place. The coaches have all got their bag of sanitizer. They've had a meeting with the rules and regulations of what they're doing for safety purposes so knock on wood, hopefully that goes well.

10. OTHER BUSINESS/REMARKS BY SELECTMEN

Selectman Coutu - I just have one thing because I've got to say this. It bothers me day in, day out. As you know Mr. Chairman, and my fellow members. We've been inundated with emails relative to the Hillwood proposed development project at Green Meadow. There has been a flood of information, as you eluded to, Mr. Chairman, appearing on Facebook and other social media outlets that are available. A lot of it is nonsense. A lot of it is not true. Some of it is conjecture. Misinterpretation of what people are saying and doing and not very tasteful at all for a community such as Hudson. I think everybody should realize 1) what you said earlier, Mr. Chairman, this is not a matter before the Board of Selectmen. But I have enough respect in each and every one of you and as I said at the start of this process, that I will, at the appropriate time, be conferring with each and every one of you. I know at the last meeting you were there Mr. Chairman. I recommend that my fellow members try to catch up or watch as much of the process as you can at the Planning Board level because I will be asking for your opinions and I will make a decision at the last moment. I try to maintain and I have tried to maintain, and I think I have been exemplary, if I may compliment myself, in showing a neutral approach to where I may or may not go with this development. We don't' have the final plans, the revised plans in yet. It's too early to make a call. People should not read into what we do here or what the Planning Board does until we get down to the brass tax. And the brass tax is having all of the studies given to us for an analysis. We have contracted people to review those studies and come in with anything they find contrary or anything they may applaud within those studies and present them before the Planning Board. I will be listening intently to all of that. In the end, in the end, and I can't say this loud enough, nor clear enough, we understand, we as members of the Board of Selectmen and I know I speak on behalf of the Planning Board when I say, we understand the significance that this will have on our town. Good or bad. We understand how impactful this is going to be. Good or bad.

Please let us review all of the material and matter as it comes before us. Do not interpret or misinterpret a question or a comment because it may not well reflect what we are thinking. In most instances it's done so in an inquisitive fashion. You saw me here this evening for example question the Town Engineer and the Public Works Director on matters that were before us. You could have interpreted my questions as being against the proposal. All I was doing was try to get clarification for the benefit of the listening audience. So that they would know, you the public, would know firsthand why these matters were before us and exactly what those matters were. I do the same thing, as do some of my peers that serve on the Planning Board. I respect you. We understand that you elected us. We understand that you pay our \$8.00 a day to sit here and serve you seven days a week. I respect all of that. But I also have an obligation as a member of the Planning Board, as do all of us on the Planning Board, we have an obligation to render to the person or company that is presenting the plan, and in this case, and I'm talking about all plans that come before us, whether it's building a house, moving a shed and they need something from the Planning Board, whatever. We owe them due diligence and I for one am going to make sure that that is given to the developer, in this case, which is Hillwood.

We have given due diligence in terms of having the public come before us. There are meetings where we don't' have public input and at every opportunity that public input is available, you will receive notices of such and I know the Chairman of the Planning Board will make, and give, the opportunity to everyone who wishes to speak even though you might want to repeat the same thing eight or nine times, we will listen to it. And we will give it due diligence. We understand how impactful this is going to be for our Town. What I, as an individual member of the Planning Board, have not decided is, is that impact positive or negative. Will the ultimate result be positive for our Town or negative? I have to look to the out years. I have to look at mitigation. How much of the problems are being mitigated? Are they going to be satisfactory mitigations because we do care about, it's a small development when you compare it to a whole town and we are concerned about how impactful this is going to be for them. We understand where you're coming from. They're putting on one hell of a campaign. I will say that. I'm envious, I wish my campaigns had that kind of support. But you do what you have to do when the time approaches. Please give us an opportunity to listen to the developer, some day, hopefully they'll come in with a revised plan everything that is going to be substantive enough for us to make an intelligent decision. If they fail to do it then it's going to go nowhere. If they succeed now that's the time when we put things on the scale and we weigh what is in the best interested for the entire Town? Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Selectman Martin - I don't have anything for you.

<u>Selectman Roy</u> - Just town things. 1) I want to congratulate the Town for breaking the voter turnout record for the State Primary. I hope to see that repeated both in November and again in March. Particularly in March, although November is just as important.

The other thing I want to say is there's a vacancy on the School Board. So if anybody is interested in applying to fill Patty Langliss' seat on the School Board, there's information on the SAU website. And Mr. Malizia is there any way we can post that on the Town website? Mr. Malizia asked, School Board vacancy? We can if the Board wants to do so. Selectman Coutu added, I think we should. A good idea, as many citizens that know. Although I'm going to get it and I'm not applying. Laughter.

<u>Selectman Morin</u> - I want to make it perfectly clear the first thing I'm going to discuss does not mean that there will be no Halloween so I don't want to see Facebook tomorrow saying the Selectmen cancelled Halloween. As of right now there has been no discussion on Halloween and we're at status quo. But do to the fact that covid and we understand that some parents may not send their children out in fear of covid, and some of the residents may not answer their door due to covid, the Fright Night will take place this year but it is going to be very different than you've seen different years. Usually it's held at the Community Center this year the Hudson Speedway has donated the Speedway so they will be setting up a drive through Fright Night. We had a meeting the other night with the Fire Department, the Police Department, the CHIPS group and the Speedway. They put a lot of thought and preparation into this. More information will be coming out shortly but we wanted to make sure the kids do enjoy Halloween somehow. So that will be coming out shortly on how that is gonna work. That will be held on October 24th from 6-9pm at the Hudson Speedway.

Second thing I have is, I went to the School Board the other night and discussed the use of Memorial School for voting. They did approve that so we need to start getting an education thing out there to the public in making sure people know they need to go to the Memorial School instead of the Community Center. I know the Town Moderator is already working on the plans. The Police Department is already working on their plans so we should have everything in place ahead of time so we can have a review.

Third thing I got and Selectman Roy had brought things forward, due to the project going on a Green Meadows we've kind of fallen behind on our Master Plan cuz the Town Planners been tied up so this Board I think needs to have a discussion maybe to get some type of assistance to him to either help him with that process down on the south end or somebody to move forward on the master plan so we don't' get behind on that. So we can disuses that. Put that on the agenda for next meeting, how we want to approach that. Cuz I think it's very important that we continue to move on with the Master Plan and he's tied up. He's very busy with the project. Selectman Coutu asked, are they both tied up, because he has a part timer? The Town Administrator added, that may be an option to utilize that part timer. Chairman Morin said, yes that's why next meeting we can.

And the last thing I got, a little concern because of what took place at voting and seeing some of the events in Town. We are still under the covid policies. And yes we take our masks off to talk because people like me that are deaf can't understand you and it's hard for people at home to hear through the mask when we're talking on the microphone. But looking at events and the meeting that we had the other night, a lot of people on the Boards and Committees and related to the Town are not wearing their masks. There were two people that we asked to either put on masks at voting or they couldn't vote because that was our policy. We required all of our employees there. All the people that come to our meetings as the public are wearing masks and hear we are, the officials of the Town, and we're not wearing masks when we should be. Again, I understand when you talk it's gonna make it easier, but I think we need to be conscious of this and as the committees and all the when we're out in the public that we need to put the mask on and set the example. That's all I have tonight.

Selectman Coutu asked, can I ask one, going back to the Middle School, in that conversation the other day, I'm sure it wasn't private, I'm sure you conferred with all members of the Board, are we going to be hiring a professional cleaning company to go in after voting? Chairman Morin replied, that was offered to them last night. They didn't' really give an answer. They use their own people and they have those fogging machines already. So I don't' know if their people will come in on overtime. Selectman

Roy answered, I believe it is a contractor and we'd just pay for that portion of it to have that cleaned. Selectman Coutu added, I just wanted the people to know that we're not going in there using that facility and we don't care. We do care. We made the offer. Chairman said, oh no that was made perfectly clear last night. Selectman Roy added there was a lot of discussion about that. Selectman Coutu added, if we're paying the fee, it's well worth it because they were gracious enough to let us use the building. We made some inroads.

11. NONPUBLIC SESSION

The Town Administrator said, the Chairman will entertain a motion to go into non-public under RSA 91-A: 3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her, unless the employee affected (1) has a right to a meeting and (2) requests that the meeting be open, in which case the request shall be granted. & (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

- (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself, unless such person requests an open meeting. This exemption shall extend to any application for assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine, or other levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant.
- (d) Consideration of the acquisition, sale, or lease of real or personal property which, if discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to those of the general community.
- (e) Consideration or negotiation of pending claims or litigation which has been threatened in writing or filed by or against the public body or any subdivision thereof, or by or against any member thereof because of his or her membership in such public body, until the claim or litigation has been fully adjudicated or otherwise settled. Any application filed for tax abatement, pursuant to law, with any body or board shall not constitute a threatened or filed litigation against any public body for the purposes of this subparagraph.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion by Selectman Martin at 8:40 p.m., seconded by Selectman Roy, to go into non-public session Carried 4-0.

Chairman Morin entered Nonpublic Session at 8:40 p.m. thus ending the televised portion of the meeting. Any votes taken upon entering open session will be listed on the Board's next agenda. The public is asked to leave the room.

Chairman Morin entered open session at 10:21 p.m. The following motions were made following the non-public session.

Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Martin to hire Donald Kirkland for the position of Civil Engineer at Step 2 \$64,531 of the Hudson Police, Fire and Town Supervisors

Association Contract, with an increase to Step 3, \$68,592 per year, upon the successful completion of six (6) moth probation period. Carried 3-1. Coutu opposed.

Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to hire Corrine Blanchard in the Police Department with a starting salary of \$25.61 (Step 1) per hour, all in accordance with the Hudson Police Employee Association Contract. Carried 4-0.

<u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Martin to Consensus to hire Kyle Tobin in the Police Department each with a starting salary of \$25.61 (Step 1) per hour, all in accordance with the Hudson Police Employee Association Contract. Carried 4-0.</u>

<u>Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to allow Chief Buxton to support</u>
<u>Chief Buxton in developing a memo of agreement with Sousa Realty regarding the relocation of the</u>
<u>Firefighter's Memorial. Carried 4-0.</u>

<u>Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to Consensus to support the</u> <u>selection of a site at Benson Park for the Firefighter's Memorial to allow for the installation estimates</u> <u>to be gathered. Carried 4-0.</u>

<u>Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Coutu to Consensus to add 2019 to the</u> 2018 PSNH Tax Appeal case. Carried 4-0.

<u>Selectman Martin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to accept the resignation of Finance Director, Kathy Carpentier and to allow the Town Administrator to start the search process for a new Finance Director. Carried 4-0.</u>

12. <u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

Normand G. Martin, Selectman

Motion to adjourn at 10:25 p.m. by Selectman Martin seconded by Selectman Roy. Carried 4-0.
Recorded by HCTV and transcribed by Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant.
David S. Morin, Chairman
Kara Roy, Vice-Chairman
Excused Marilyn E. McGrath, Selectman
Roger E. Coutu, Selectman